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IN THE IOWA DISTRICT COURT IN AND FOR SAC COUNTY
STATE OF IOWA,

No. FECR012634

Plaintiff,
STATE’S MOTION FOR A WATSON
HEARING

v.
DARREN MITCHELL MEADE
Defendant.

COMES NOW the State of Iowa, through the Sac County Attorney, Ben
Smith, and pursuant to the Iowa Supreme Court’s holding in State v. Watson,
respectfully submits to the Court its application for a Watson hearing. State v.
Watson, 620 N.W.2d 233 (Iowa 2000).
It is not the State’s desire that defense counsel be removed, nor should
the State’s application be viewed as advocating for the same. Simply, the State
believes the Court’s holding in Watson requires that the State make the Court
aware of any known, actual, or potential conflicts of interest, so as to safeguard
Defendant’s constitutional right to effective assistance of counsel, and avoid revisiting the issues on appeal or in post-conviction relief proceedings.
FACTS 1
1.

Xcentric

Ventures

is

an

Arizona-based

company

(dba

www.ripoffreport.com), which is incorporated in the State of Arizona. The
www.ripoffreport.com (“Ripoff Report”) is a purported consumer advocacy
website that allows people to publish free “complaints” on its website about any
experience (good or bad) that a person has had with any business or any
individual. It is believed that RipOff Report, which is owned by Ed Magedson
(with the law firm of Jaburg and Wilk having a UCC lien on the business),
grosses around 15 million dollars a year, mostly through advertising revenue,
and is worth approximately 45 million dollars.
1

Unless stated otherwise, all facts averred herein are contained in the Minutes of Testimony.
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2.

On November 7, 2011, Tracey Richter was convicted of murdering

Dustin Wehde in 2001, and was sentenced to life in prison on December 5, 2011.
2

3.

Defendant, Darren Meade (“Defendant”), is a lifelong California

resident. As discussed below in greater detail, RipOff Report employed
Defendant from December 2011 through May 2014 to create and publish
“complaints” on its website. A greater, more detailed account of Defendant’s and
RipOff Report’s exploits can be found in the State’s Response to Defendant’s
Motion to Disqualify (“MDQ”) County Attorney filed in State v. [RipOff Report], 3
on October 12, 2014. The State’s Response to RipOff Report’s MDQ County
Attorney and all attachments thereto are incorporated herein by this reference as
though full set forth herein.
4.

In April 2012, Defendant conspired with Tracey Richter and her

family to provide false information to the undersigned’s office (Sac County
Attorney’s Office) and the Sac County Sheriff’s Office in effort to corrupt Richter’s
conviction and sway Richter’s pending child custody matters. Among other
things, Defendant reported that he had information that implicated Michael
Roberts, Tracey Richter’s second ex-husband, for Wehde’s murder and would
exonerate Tracey Richter.
5.

The State investigated Defendant’s claims in the weeks that followed

and, in doing so, learned the following: (1) all of the information Defendant
provided to the Sac County Attorney’s Office and the Sac County Sheriff’s Office
was patently false; (2) Defendant and RipOff Report colluded with Richter and
her family to create and publicize this information with the hopes of helping
Richter get a new trial; and (3) Defendant testified he was a professional
“reputation hitman” who specialized in using the internet to defame, harass,
and intimidate adverse civil litigants and their witnesses into settling or dismissing

2

State of Iowa v. Tracey Richter, Sac County District Court, Case No. FECR011900

3

State of Iowa v. Xcentric Ventures, Sac County District Court, Case No. CVCV019540
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their claims. The information obtained also showed Defendant communicated
over the phone with Ed Magedson, the owner of RipOff Report, daily, sometimes
for hours, and also with RipOff Report’s general counsel, attorney Maria Speth of
the Phoenix, Arizona law firm of Jaburg Wilk.
6.

In May 2012, the undersigned asked Defendant to testify under oath

to the aforementioned information he provided to law enforcement, but
Defendant refused. After Defendant’s refusal, the undersigned informed
Defendant that the State learned all of Defendant’s claims were patently false
and that Defendant had been communicating extensively with Richter’s family.
The undersigned also told Defendant that the State planned to continue to
investigate Defendant’s fraudulent misrepresentations and report the same to
other law enforcement entities.
7.

In September 2012, four months after Defendant learned of the

State’s investigation, Defendant and his employer, RipOff Report, began
publishing numerous “hit pieces” (hereinafter “complaints”) on millions of
webpages, accusing the State’s witnesses in Richter with fraud, perjury, child
molestation, drug abuse, and other nefarious transgressions, and the
undersigned of prosecutorial misconduct, ethics violations, and various criminal
acts.
8.

Defendant and RipOff Report published one of the aforementioned

“complaints” about the State’s witnesses on every one of its approximate 1.8
million webpages, and have boasted that these “complaints” are sometimes
viewed around two million times per day. Defendant and his co-conspirators
continued to publish these “complaints” through as recently as September 2014.
9.

In one of his first “complaints,” Defendant predicted he would be

investigated in retaliation for publishing his “exposés” concerning the State’s
prosecution of Tracey Richter (i.e., Defendant predicted he would be
investigated four months after he was told he was being investigated).
Later, in October 2012, long before the State’s investigation became public,
Defendant published two “complaints” on its website that served to warn the
3
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undersigned of possible reprisal if the State continued to investigate Defendant
and RipOff Report.
10. Defendant’s “complaints” concerning the undersigned and the State’s
witnesses are nonsensical and unworthy of belief on any level. But, it is not the
substantive content of Defendant’s “complaints” which are damaging the State’s
witnesses beyond repair; rather, what makes these “complaints” so lethal are the
search engine optimization (SEO) techniques Defendant and RipOff Report
employ to cause them to appear at the top of the first page of Google-type
search results, alongside references to reprehensible criminal and immoral
conduct.
11. The following RipOff Report “complaint,” which Defendant published
on RipOff Report’s website on February 7, 2013, is about State’s witnesses
Raymond and Marie Friedman and Michael Roberts, as well as their respective
businesses, Mile2 and Rexxfield.com. Defendant gave this “complaint” the
following title:

12. The titles of all the RipOff Report complaints concerning the State’s
witnesses, such as the one above, although appearing nonsensical and
maundering, are worded to maximize their visibility in legitimate internet searches
for the witnesses and their businesses (i.e., financial interests and livelihoods).
The following is the actual screen shot of a Google search the undersigned
performed on September 26, 2014, for “Marie and Raymond Friedman”:

4
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13. As shown in the screen shot above, the first three results returned
are to RipOff Report “complaints” associating Raymond and Marie Friedman, and
their business, Mile2, with child porn, pipes bombs, and other nefarious subject
matters.
14. Because of Defendant and RipOff Report’s systemic and ongoing
retaliation against the State’s witnesses, one of the witnesses, Dr. John Pitman,
a prominent plastic surgeon and Colonel in the U.S. Army Reserve, lost most of
his surgical practice, laid off all but two full time employees, and has lost over 1.3
million dollars as of January 1 2015. Of immediate concern and critical
importance to this Court, however, is that his military career now faces
compromise as well. Dr. John Pitman informed the undersigned that the neardestruction of his business has made it extremely difficult for him to afford the
substantial costs he incurs when he volunteers for prolonged temporary tours of
5
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active duty at Walter Reed National Medical Center. In the past, these tours
have lasted as long as eight months. Prior to the appearance of Defendant’s and
RipOff Report’s complaints about him on the RipOff Report website, Dr. John
Pitman Pitman’s practice's profitability could offset the costs incurred by these
voluntary Army duties. As a result, Colonel Pitman has he been unable to add
an additional voluntary activation to Walter Reed Hospital to a series of four prior
mobilizations as a plastic and reconstructive surgeon to treat returning
wounded using his unique skill-set and high level of experience. Instead, Dr.
John Pitman has volunteered for a shorter ninety-day overseas deployment as a
general surgeon. On February 5, 2015, Dr. John Pitman received orders to
report as a General Medical Officer to Fort Bliss Texas with a final
destination assigned on a Special Forces Combat Mission to Afghanistan. During
that time, Dr. John Pitman, now that he is on active duty orders, Colonel Pitman,
will have numerous Soldiers under his command, and will be the treating surgeon
for US and Afghani National Army combat casualties as required. Colonel
Pitman is likely to be one of the highest ranking officers (if not the highest) at the
Forward Surgical Team he has been assigned to. Colonel Pitman has been
informed by the unit commander in Afghanistan that there is constant internet
access at the base to which he is assigned. Because Colonel Pitman is being
brought into a situation where most of the soldiers at the base, including the
wounded / injured troops, will not know him, there is a very high likelihood that
Colonel Pitman will receive close scrutiny via internet searches by those under
his command and care, whose lives and safety he is responsible for.
15. The following are just a handful of the “complaints” about Dr. John
Pitman (Colonel Pitman) on RipOff Report proven to be, and in some instances,
admittedly, published by Defendant and RipOff Report:

6
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16. Adding insult to injury, on November 11, 2013, at Ed Magedson’s
direction, RipOff Report employee Siamack Yaghobi, going by the name “Sam
Youbanks” at Ed Magedson’s insistence, called Dr. John Pitman’s surgery
practice, which is located in Virginia, and offered to remove all the “complaints”
from RipOff Report (complaints Defendant and RipOff Report created and
published on RipOff Report’s website) via RipOff Report’s “advocacy protection”
services for $10,000 upfront and an unstated amount each month thereafter as a
“maintenance fee.”
17. Most troubling in all this, however, is that save for the mother of the
murder victim, all the State’s witnesses who appear in Defendant’s “complaints”
have stated that they would not have voluntarily cooperated with the State in its
investigation into Wehde’s murder and would have avoided testifying against
Richter had they known their professional and personal lives would be targeted
on millions of webpages as a result.
18. In late April 2014, Defendant and RipOff Report had a falling out. The
long and short of it is Defendant quit “working” on “Tracey Richter’s case,” so
11
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RipOff Report quit paying him. When Defendant learned he would no longer be
receiving a regular paycheck from RipOff Report, Defendant extorted RipOff
Report; specifically, Defendant threatened to publicly expose RipOff Report’s
corrupt business practices, with which Defendant was intimately associated, if
RipOff Report did not meet certain demands, which, among other things,
required RipOff Report to pay him thousands of dollars, procure a rental car for
his long-term use, and continue paying for his beachfront rental in Huntington
Beach, California. Shortly after this,

RipOff Report reported Defendant’s

extortive efforts to law enforcement in Arizona.
19. When RipOff Report refused to meet Defendant’s extortive demands,
Defendant made good on his threats: On or around May 17, 2014, Defendant
contacted the attorney representing the plaintiffs in Small Justice v. [RipOff
Report], 4 a pending civil case filed against RipOff Report in the Federal District
Court for Massachusetts, and informed the attorney that he (Defendant) would be
filing a lawsuit against Ed Magedson and RipOff Report, from which he hoped to
recover over one million dollars. Defendant further told this attorney that he had a
great deal of information in his possession that proved Ed Magedson and RipOff
Report paid him to author and publish defamatory complaints on RipOff Report’s
website, which Defendant contended, if publicly disclosed, would destroy RipOff
Report’s immunity under the Communications and Decency Act (“CDA”).

5

4

Small Justice v. Xcentric Ventures, United States District Court, District of Massachusetts, Civil
Action No. 1:13-CV-11701-DJC

5

The Communications Decency Act (CDA), 47 U.S.C. § 230(c), gives internet service providers,
such as RipOff Report, immunity from any civil cause of action brought as a result of
information published on an internet service provider’s website that originates from a third-party
user of the service (e.g., disgruntled consumer, jilted lover, business competitor, reputation
hitman, etc.). The following discussion about RipOff Report’s CDA immunity is on RipOff
Report’s website: “The CDA provides that when a user…posts material on an ‘interactive
website’ such as Ripoff Report, the site itself cannot, in most cases, be held legally responsible
for the posted material. Specifically, 47 U.S.C. § 230(c)(1) states, ‘No provider or user of an
interactive computer service shall be treated as the publisher or speaker of any information
provided by another information content provider.’ Because the reports on Ripoff Report are
authored by users of the site, we cannot be legally regarded as the ‘publisher or speaker’ of the
reports contained here, and hence we are not liable for reports even if they contain false or
inaccurate information.”
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Defendant further told the attorney that he (Defendant) would provide tangible
proof / documentary information stored on his personal computer that evidenced
his claims if the attorney would file suit on Defendant’s behalf against RipOff
Report. Copies of Defendant’s aforementioned communications are attached
hereto as Exhibit 1.
20. Not long after Defendant provided this information to this plaintiff’s
attorney, the attorney noticed RipOff Report that he planned to call Defendant as
a witness in his clients’ cases against them. Soon after this, Defendant told the
plaintiff’s attorney in Small Justice that he (Defendant) received a hostile
communication from RipOff Report’s attorneys after they learned Defendant
provided this information to the plaintiff’s attorney.
21. In addition to sending information about the nature of his employment
and association with RipOff Report to the plaintiff’s attorney in Small Justice,
Defendant also sent the same to other plaintiff’s attorneys. Copies of some of
those communications are attached hereto as Exhibit 2.
22. After

learning

Defendant

provided

this

information

to

the

aforementioned plaintiff’s attorney (information that RipOff Report has admitted
could potentially destroy it), and that the attorney planned to call Defendant as a
witness in their civil case, RipOff Report reluctantly entered into “negotiations”
with Defendant to secure his silence via a non-disclosure agreement (NDA) and
any data on Defendant’s computer that linked RipOff Report to the online
complaints about the State’s witnesses. During these negotiations, RipOff Report
attorney and Chief Operations Officer (COO), Adam Kunz, told Defendant that
Defendant was a liar and an extortionist.
23. After Defendant and RipOff Report entered into the NDA, Defendant
moved to quash his deposition in Small Justice, claiming he was an investigative
journalist and that the information he offered earlier for valuable consideration
was now shielded from discovery by the “Reporter’s Privilege.” Not surprisingly,
soon thereafter, RipOff Report filed a brief that supported Defendant’s motion to
quash.
13
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24. On or around July 7, 2014, RipOff Report learned the State had
obtained evidence proving it and Defendant had been colluding with convicted
murderer Tracey Richter to create and publish “complaints” about the State’s
witnesses, then offer the witnesses to have the “complaints” removed if the
witnesses recanted their trial testimony against Richter, thus bolstering Richter’s
post-conviction relief (“PCR”) claims.
25. Although mounds of unimpeachable evidence shows otherwise,
when confronted by law enforcement, RipOff Report denied it ever employed
Defendant or was in any way responsible for creating or publishing the millions of
defamatory and harassing webpages about the State’s witnesses. Also during
the aforementioned conversation, the undersigned was informed that Ed
Magedson would invoke his right against self-incrimination if called to testify
against Defendant.
26. To further obfuscate its role in creating and publishing these
complaints, RipOff Report told law enforcement it may remove the names and
images of the State’s witnesses if the witnesses enrolled in RipOff Report’s “VIP
Arbitration” program 6 (a “mitigation service” similar to the one RipOff Report tried
to “sell” to Dr. John Pitman) and provided RipOff Report evidence proving the
“complaints” were false. Translation: RipOff Report will continue harassing the
State’s witnesses with the salacious, defamatory “complaints” it created about
them, and publishing on millions of webpages, until they helped legitimize and
conceal RipOff Report’s criminal, extortive efforts by enrolling in one of its
“reputation management” programs. 7

6

RipOff Report’s Corporate Advocacy Program (“CAP”), Verified, and “VIP” Arbitration programs
are all expensive services provided solely by RipOff Report, which mitigate, and in some
instances, remove negative, defamatory content from RipOff Report complaints, but only after
the “customer” pays a hefty fee, and in some instances, a continuing monthly payment. One
“service” provided by RipOff Report immunizes the “customer” from any future derogatory
complaints on its site for a monthly fee.

7

“A person commits extortion if the person does any of the following with the purpose of
obtaining for oneself or another anything of value, tangible or intangible, including labor or
services: Threatens to expose any person to hatred, contempt, or ridicule; Threatens to harm

14
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27. RipOff Report threatened to file a Bar complaint and a civil lawsuit
against the undersigned if the undersigned’s investigation into RipOff Report
continued. On October 10, 2014, during the hearing on RipOff Report’s motion to
disqualify the undersigned in State v. [RipOff Report], RipOff Report’s attorneys
admitted to threatening the undersigned with a Bar complaint. See IA ETHICS
OP 14-02, which is attached hereto as Exhibit 3.
28. On August 6, 2014, in its application to restrain RipOff Report from
further harassing and intimidating the State’s witnesses filed in State v. [RipOff
Report], the State averred that RipOff Report’s suggestion that the witnesses
enroll in its VIP Arbitration program was tantamount to extortion, and asked the
Court to order RipOff Report to remove the names and images of the State’s
witnesses from its “complaints.”
29. Later, it was discovered that on or around August 24, 2014,
Defendant had been flown to Arizona to meet with RipOff Report. After learning
of this, the undersigned confronted RipOff Report’s attorney Peter Berger, who
later told the undersigned that Defendant flew to Arizona so RipOff Report and
one of its attorneys could “impress upon [Defendant] that [RipOff Report] [was]
investigating his posts [about the State’s witnesses] and that in order to properly
do that, [Defendant] should come forward with direct proof of the statements in
the posts if he [had] such proof.” However, in addition to the the patently
ridiculous reason given for Defendant’s trip to Arizona, evidence obtained by law
enforcement shows the parties met to exchange their bargained for consideration
(i.e., cash for data files on Defendant’s computer) and conspire to thwart the
undersigned’s criminal investigation.
30. On September 2, 2014, a Trial Information was filed charging
Defendant with Ongoing Criminal Conduct, a Class “B” Felony in violation of Iowa

the credit or business or professional reputation of any person; or Threatens to…cause some
public official…to take or withhold action.” IOWA CODE § 711.4 (2015).
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Code section 706A.3, for a number of indictable offenses related to his
harassment of the State’s witnesses, and other specified unlawful conduct.
31. Defendant has maintained that he is unemployed, homeless, and
penniless (save for the money he was able to extort from RipOff Report). Yet,
despite Defendant’s insolvency, Defendant was able to retain multiple attorneys
to represent him in the instant criminal case, one being Glen Downey, a Des
Moines, Iowa attorney. Since his appearance in these matters, which was on
September 25, 2014, Mr. Downey has filed a myriad of motions and briefs,
which, in the aggregate, must have cost tens of thousands of dollars in legal
fees.
32. On October 3, 2014, Defendant filed a motion to disqualify the
undersigned, alleging the undersigned had numerous conflicts of interest and,
therefore, should be disqualified from prosecuting Defendant.
33. Immediately following the hearing on Defendant’s MDQ the
undersigned, which was held December 1, 2014, Mr. Downey, without his client
present, told the undersigned he could possibly get RipOff Report to remove the
names of the State’s witnesses from the meta-tags of the “complaints” about the
State’s witnesses that the State could prove were false, but that any removal
would have to be conditioned upon dismissal of all charges against Defendant
and the State’s agreeing not to prosecute RipOff Report or Ed Magedson for any
related crimes. After Mr. Downey left the Sac County Courthouse, he personally
communicated this to Ed Magedson and Ed Magedson’s attorneys.8
34. Mr. Downey also provided the undersigned with the below “mugshot”
of a John Pittman (spelled with two t’s) who had been arrested for soliciting a
prostitute in Jacksonville, Florida in 2007, as proof that Darren Meade’s
8

It is important to note that Mr. Downey appeared at the hearing on Defendant’s MDQ the
undersigned with Tracey Richter’s PCR attorney, Julia Ofenbakh. RipOff Report owner Ed
Magedson financed and provided other resources to assist Tracey Richter in her (and RipOff
Report’s) efforts to have the undersigned disqualified from Richter’s PCR case. Like
Defendant’s MDQ the undersigned in this case, Richter’s MDQ the undersigned in her PCR
case was also denied / overruled.
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publications on RipOff Report about Dr. John Pitman (spelled with one t) hiring
prostitutes were protected by the First Amendment:

Offering I«- PtlKflu1kln

JOllll PITIIMft

Sdkm"' fur l'rm1ill.ltion

35. The above-mugshots w ere published as part of a 2007 onl ine news
story from the First Coast News , which is out of Jacksonville, Florida, about local
arrests. As alluded to above, the John Pitman appearing in the mugshot spells
his last name with two t's; the Dr. John Pitman who is a State's witness and a
Colonel in the U.S. Military, spells his last name with one t. Moreover, the
photograph of John Pittman appearing in the mugshots looks nothing like the
actual photographs of Dr. John Pitman that Defendant published on RipOff
Report.

17
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36. On December 15, 2014, RipOff Report attorney Peter Berger told the
undersigned that RipOff Report was conducting an investigation into the State’s
allegations that RipOff Report hired Defendant to post harassing “complaints” on
its website about the State’s witnesses. Mr. Berger further informed the
undersigned that RipOff Report would remove any false statements of fact from
Defendant’s online “complaints” about the State’s witnesses, and asked the
undersigned to provide him with information that would help RipOff Report in its
purported “investigation.”
37. On January 17, 2015, while discussing continuing Defendant’s trial
date, with the ruling on Defendant’s motion to disqualify the undersigned still
pending, Mr. Downey expressed that he wanted to resolve the matters for
Defendant as expeditiously as possible, as the State’s charges were weighing
heavily against Defendant.
38. On January 23, 2015, to the dismay of Defendant and RipOff Report,
the Court overruled Defendant’s motion to disqualify the undersigned, finding that
the undersigned did not have a conflict of interest that would prevent him from
prosecuting Defendant.
39. On January 27, 2015, in an e-mail to Defendant’s attorney Glen
Downey, the State offered to dismiss all charges against Defendant, with
prejudice, if Defendant agreed to testify against RipOff Report and Ed Magedson
before the Sac County Grand Jury, in conformity with the information he
effectively tried to sell to the plaintiff’s attorney in Small Justice (hereinafter “the
offer”).
40. On January 29, 2015, two days after receiving the State’s offer,
without responding to, or otherwise acknowledging the same, and after
discussing the offer with RipOff Report, but before discussing it with his client
(see below), Mr. Downey filed for discovery in this case.
41. On January 30, 2015, more than three days after the State made the
offer, Mr. Downey told the undersigned he had not yet communicated the offer to

18
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his client. However, as mentioned above, the evidence shows Mr. Downey had
already communicated the State’s offer to Defendant’s unindicted coconspirators, Ed Magedson and RipOff Report, by this time.
42. Later that day (January 30, 2015), only one week from the date
Defendant’s MDQ the undersigned was denied, and less than three days after
the State informed Mr. Downey that it planned to present its case against Ed
Magedson and RipOff Report to the Sac County Grand Jury, RipOff Report filed
a lawsuit against the undersigned in United States District Court, Northern
District of Iowa.

9

This vindictive reprisal requests “a declaration that…[the

undersigned] has a conflict of interest in continuing any further investigation or
prosecution of [Ed Magedson or RipOff Report]” and “for an order enjoining [the
undersigned] from continuing his campaign of retaliation against [Ed Magedson
or RipOff Report], including an injunction precluding further investigation and/or
prosecution of [Ed Magedson or RipOff Report] by [the undersigned].” This
preemptive filing is the most recent and transparent example of a series of
castigating procedural contrivances brought by the RipOff Report’s counsel in the
hopes of intimidating the undersigned to withdraw from his sworn duty to
prosecute criminal activity.
43. On February 1, 2015, Mr. Downey informed the undersigned that
Defendant had rejected the State’s offer. Mr. Downey stated that his client had
“absolutely nothing to offer [the State] in regards to [RipOff Report] and Ed
Magedson because there [had] been no illegal conduct on the part of either
party.” Despite this declaration denying any wrongdoing on the part of his client,
Mr. Downey then made a “counteroffer” to the State: Mr. Downey told the
undersigned that Defendant (who supposedly does not work for, or have any
professional connection with, RipOff Report) would cease employing the abovedescribed SEO techniques on all the complaints Defendant created about the

9

[RipOff Report] v. Ben Smith, United States District Court, Northern District of Iowa, Civil Action
No. 15CV4008-DEO
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State’s witnesses and the undersigned 10 on RipOff Report’s website, if all the
charges were dropped against Defendant, and if the State agreed not to
prosecute RipOff Report or Ed Magedson for any related conduct. 11 A copy of
this e-mail communication is attached hereto as Exhibit 4.
44. On February 4, 2015, in furtherance of these efforts to persuade the
undersigned to violate his known legal duty as a public servant, RipOff Report’s
attorney Maria Speth, who, days earlier, stated she intended to make application
to appear in Iowa pro hac vice in RipOff Report’s civil suit against the
undersigned, asked the attorney representing the undersigned in the suit to tell
the undersigned that Defendant had the ability to bind RipOff Report to Mr.
Downey’s above-stated “counteroffer,” so long as the undersigned agreed to
drop all charges against Defendant, and grant immunity to “Ed Magedson,
Xcentric Ventures, and all attorneys, employees, and agents of RipOff Report for
any actions related to the posting of RipOff Reports about the Tracey Richter
prosecution, and end the undersigned’s related activities.” 12 A copy of this e-mail
communication is attached hereto as Exhibit 5.
45. Although the undersigned had previously specifically stated to
counsel for both RipOff Report and Defendant, and in multiple filings that the
State’s request for relief regarding the State’s witnesses not include the
undersigned, Mr. Downey’s and Ms. Speth’s respective, coordinated proffers
consciously stated that the proposed remedies would also apply to those reports
10

In addition to those “complaints” concerning the State’s witnesses, Defendant and RipOff
Report have offered to “hide” the millions of “complaints” Defendant and RipOff Report
published about the undersigned, “criticizing” his handling of the Richter prosecution, if the
undersigned agrees not to prosecute RipOff Report or its attorneys. According to Defendant
and RipOff Report, said “complaint” demonstrate the undersigned committed prosecutorial
misconduct, ethics violations, and crimes in furtherance of his prosecution of Tracey Richter,
and also the undersigned’s homosexual orgies with one of the State’s witnesses and rampant
methamphetamine use.

11

“A person who offers…anything of value or any benefit to a person who is...elected, with the
understanding that the promise or thing of value or benefit will influence the…decision, or
exercise of discretion of the person with respect to the person’s services in that capacity
commits [Bribery,] a class ‘D’ felony. IOWA CODE § 722.1 (2015)

12

Id.
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about the undersigned. These statements knowingly and unambiguously were
meant to confer a benefit to the undersigned in return for a promise to drop all
charges against the Defendant in addition to an agreement not to prosecute
RipOff Report or Ed Magedson for any related conduct.
46. On February 6, 2015, the undersigned reported Defendant’s and
RipOff Report’s efforts to bribe the undersigned to the Iowa Division of Criminal
Investigation (“DCI”).
DEFENDANT’S CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT TO CONFLICT-FREE COUNSEL
47. The Court should inquire into the “propriety of defense counsel's
representation when it ‘knows or reasonably should know’ that an actual or
potential conflict exists.’” Failure to make such an inquiry under these
circumstances may later result in reversal of defendant’s conviction. Watson at
238 (citations omitted).
48. “A lawyer shall not represent a client if the representation involves a
concurrent conflict of interest. A concurrent conflict of interest exists if…[t]here is
a significant risk that the representation of one or more clients will be materially
limited by the lawyer's responsibilities to another client, a former client, or a third
person or by a personal interest of the lawyer.” IOWA R. CIV. P. 32:1.7(a)(2).
49. A conflict of interest may be found in cases other than in those
involving “dual representation.” Id. at 239. “The test is whether ‘an attorney is
placed in a situation conducive to divided loyalties.’” Id. (quoting Smith v.
Lockhart, 923 F.2d 1314, 1320 (8th Cir. 1991)).
50. In addition to the right to effective assistance of counsel, the Sixth
Amendment allows defendant the right to counsel of his choosing; however, “the
essential aim of the Sixth Amendment is to guarantee an effective advocate for
each criminal defendant rather than to ensure that a defendant will inexorably be
represented by the lawyer he prefers. Id. (quoting Wheat v. United States, 486
U.S. 153, 159 (1988)).
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51. The Iowa Supreme Court has recognized that “[t]here are times when
an accused’s right to counsel of choice must yield to a greater interest in
maintaining high standards of professional responsibility in the courtroom.
The trial court may therefore disqualify counsel if necessary to preserve the
integrity, fairness, and professionalism of trial court proceedings.” State v.
Vanover, 559 N.W.2d 618, 627 (1997) (citations omitted).
52. Defendant can waive his right to conflict-free counsel, but the trial
court can reject defendant’s waiver “when the State shows the attorney has an
actual conflict of interest or a serious potential for conflict of interest.” Vanover at
626-27 (citations omitted).
53. Further, “[t]he court should not be required to tolerate a defendant’s
counsel choosing to proceed in representation despite an apparent conflict of
interests, as ‘such representation…invites disrespect for the integrity of the
court [and] it is also detrimental to the independent interest of the trial judge to
be free from future attacks over the adequacy of waiver or the fairness of the
proceedings in his [or her] own court and the subtle problems implicating the
defendant’s comprehension of the waiver.” Id. at 627 (quoting Wheat, 486 U.S. at
164).
54. “Receiving payment of legal fees from someone other than the client
is appropriate, provided that the lawyer remembers that his or her professional
obligations, including the duty of loyalty and protection of confidential information,
are owed solely to the client. As the Iowa Supreme Court stated nearly half a
century ago, ‘[t]he fact that another selects and pays an attorney does not control
the relationship of attorney-client.’” 16 Gregory C. Sisk & Mark S. Cady Ia. Prac.,
Lawyer and Judicial Ethics § 5:8(h) (2015) (citing Henke v. Iowa Home Mut. Cas.
Co., 249 Iowa 614, 617, 87 N.W.2d 920, 923 (1958)).
55. “Paragraph (f) of Rule 1.8 provides that ‘[a] lawyer shall not accept
compensation for representing a client from a person other than the client unless:
(1) the client gives informed consent; (2) there is no interference with the lawyer's
independence of professional judgment or with the client-lawyer relationship; and
22
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(3) information relating to representation of a client is protected as required by
Rule 1.6.’ Paragraph (f) thus is parallel to and reinforced by Rule 5.4(c), which
provides that ‘[a] lawyer shall not permit a person who recommends, employs, or
pays the lawyer to render legal services for another to direct or regulate the
lawyer's professional judgment in rendering such legal services.’” Id.
56. “Under Rule 1.8(f), the lawyer must ensure that the client
understands that the payment of legal fees is being made by another, that the
source of that compensation does not affect the confidential nature of the
attorney-client relationship or alter the client's entitlement to the lawyer's
unimpaired loyalty, and that the client agrees.” Id.
57. “Even with the client's consent, Rules 1.8(f) and 5.4(c) allow the
lawyer to proceed only if the lawyer is confident that his or her independence of
professional judgment will not be compromised and that client confidences will be
preserved. If the third-party payee should interfere with the representation or the
lawyer is unable to maintain independence of judgment because of the lawyer's
susceptibility to the influence of that third-party, then the lawyer is ethically
unable to undertake or continue the representation.” Id.
58. “Comment 12 to Rule 1.8 advises that ‘if there is significant risk that
the lawyer's representation of the client will be materially limited by the lawyer's
own interest in the fee arrangement or by the lawyer's responsibilities to the thirdparty payer (for example, when the third-party payer is a co-client),’ then the
lawyer must either withdraw or obtain informed consent, not merely to the
payment arrangement, but also to the conflict of interest itself from all clients as
provided under Rule 1.7(b).” Id.
CONCLUSION
59. As the foregoing makes clear, Defendant’s and RipOff Report’s
interests are adverse to one another. Mr. Downey is aware that if Defendant
testifies in conformity with the information Defendant provided to the plaintiff’s
attorney in Small Justice, information Defendant attempted to sell before
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Defendant entered into the aforementioned NDA with RipOff Report and decided
to become an “investigative journalist,” RipOff Report will lose its civil and
criminal immunity under the CDA.
60. Although Mr. Downey is aware of Defendant’s efforts to extort RipOff
Report (or at least that RipOff Report reported to law enforcement that it was
being extorted by Defendant), Defendant’s threatened lawsuit against RipOff
Report, Defendant’s admissions that Ed Magedson and RipOff Report hired
Defendant to create content about the State’s witnesses, Mr. Downey has been
constantly communicating information about his client’s case to, and has been
advocating and “negotiating” on behalf of, to Defendant’s unindicted coconspirators, RipOff Report and Ed Magedson.
61. For all the charges against Mr. Downey’s client to be dismissed, with
prejudice, which include a Class “B” Felony charge that carries a possibility of 25
years in prison, all Defendant has to do is testify against Ed Magedson and
RipOff Report in conformity with information Defendant attempted to sell to the
highest bidder months earlier, when, according to RipOff Report, it was being
extorted by Defendant. But Defendant rejected the State’s offer, and Mr. Downey
added that his client had “absolutely nothing to offer [the State] in regards to
[RipOff Report] and Ed Magedson,” which, as the foregoing demonstrates, could
not be any further from reality.
62. The Court should consider the difficulty that Mr. Downey has and will
have in objectively gauging the merits of the State’s offer and other matters
pertaining to his client’s case, while simultaneously representing RipOff Report’s
and Ed Magedson’s interests.
63. Also, the Court should consider the Mr. Downey’s divided loyalties if
Mr. Downey has any knowledge that his legal fees are being paid by RipOff
Report, either directly or indirectly.
64. Lastly, the Court should consider Mr. Downey’s regrettable decision
to participate (on some level) with Defendant’s and RipOff Report’s bribery of the
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undersigned, and how Mr. Downey's need to protect his own interests (e.g. , right
against self-incrimination) could interfere with his ability to advocate for
Defendant in these matters.
WHEREFORE, for the above-stated reasons, the State respectfully asks
that the Court set this matter for hearing to determine the existence of any actual
or potential confl icts of interest that may deny Defendant's constitutional right to
confl ict-free legal course, and make any order with respect to such findings as it
deems appropriate under the circumstances.

Benjamin John Smith
Sac County Attorney
Sac County Courthouse
100 NW State St. , Suite 9
Sac City IA 50583
Telephone: 712-662-4791
Email : attorney@saccounty.org
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1

----------·--·---··-----·-·---

From: Darren M. Meade [mailto:dmeade@kairos-meade.com]

Sent: Saturday, June 14. 2014 1:03 AM
To:
Subject: Confidential communication not for publication

Dear Mr.
I wrote you, confidentially, seeking your assistance as a contingency attorney
in my claims against a company called Xcentric Ventures whom you also had
pending litigation. You had responded to my email seeking a contingency
attorney and asked for additional information about my claims against
Xcentric.
Later you asked some specific questions, and your conduct seemed to show
you felt my claims against Xcentric had merit and we scheduled a
teleconference.
And, a week later you no longer returned my call or email.
I then had a hostile communication with an attorney stating you had placed
me on a witness list for your lawsuit against Xcentric, is that true? The other
party would not show me documentation, they did threaten that if I filed
litigation they would sue me and the attorney representing me for sanctions (
not really sure what 'sanctions' are).
From our first communication I asked you to explicitly represent me, as a
contingency attorney (confidentially) including and how your representing me
may benefit us both.
May I ask, are you my attorney ... did you list me as a witness on your
lawsuit against Xcentric?
Please help me.
I only graduated high school because of something called continuation
school. I have no legal training ... my question might be poorly written ... but
I contacted you to take my case as a contingency attorney against Xcentric
... and at least according to Google those confidential communications are
protected ... I need to know if that attorney was on a fishing expedition ... or
if you betrayed my trust ... I prefer, we move forward as my initial
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confidential communication entailed as my contingency attorney.
Kindest regards,
Bevill, Bresler & Schulman Asset Management Corp., 80~) F.2d 120, 124, n.l
(3d Cir. l 986) ("The attorney-client privilege protects conversations between
prospective clients and counsel as
well as conversations with retained counsel.").
Green v. I.R.S., 556 F. Supp. 79, 85 (N.D. Ind. 1982) ("The privilege is
applicable to communications from the attorney to the client:, as well as
communications to the attorney from the client) .
Darren M. Meade
Direct: (949) 813-4983
Visit me on Linkedin
Visit me on Facebook
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From: Darren M. Meade [mailto:dmeade@kairos-meade.com]

Sent: Friday, May 23, 2014 7:21 PM
Subject: 2nd Reply ... Conflict request .. Ed Magedson // Ripoff
Report I/ CONFIDENTIAL LEGAL NOTICE PUBLICATION PROHIBITED

Dear Mr.
below my reply from with additional details in
regards to my seeking counsel for litigation
against Ed Magedson : : Xcentric Ventures.
I had not yet received a reply.
My hope was that you might see the value in
uniting together for a speedy resolution for us
both. If you did send a reply can you kindly
resend it?
In the event you have declined representing me,
I wish you well.
Respectfully,
Darren

Hello
thank you for your reply.
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I never thought I would be writing seeking legal
counsel over my 2.4 years employment
with Xcentric Ventures/ Ed Magedson. Please be
advised I have only a high school education and
no legal training, therefore I may utilize a word
or phrase which might be different than
the "legal" definition of the word, please keep
that in mind as you read the basis of my claim.
Background:
I had a triple dissection of my aorta which
requires though I survived I am permanently
disabled and due to complication my doctor
advised I could die suddenly or might have a life
expectancy of 3-4 months. Partially due to the
fact that I was without a car and had to walk 9.6
miles to pick up my blood pressure and heart
medicine, 15.8 miles monthly lab work ... plus
any errands, this was all done on a 'club foot'
which was a complications from the triple
dissection of my aorta. 9 miles would take me 56 hours and leave me with a bloody foot and
pounding headache.
I contracted pneumonia but in order to stay alive
had to still walk to pick up my medications, Ed,
felt I should power through and finish some
research into some reports I posted on Ripoff
Report, I was unable for 3-4 weeks and for the
first time in 2.4 years he stopped my weekly pay
( my compensation package also included my
rent being paid to my landlord ) until I
completed some reports. Prior to contracting
pneumonia, I worked 12-16 hours per day, 7
days a week, including holidays, for 2.3 years.
Ed referred to me as his top confidant.
Ed withheld pay, and during that time I was
offered a new job, one that would pay me an
additional $500 per month. The additional $500
would allow me to buy a car, and given my
health that was everything to me. I informed Ed.
.....-1
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1 nat oegan a series or ema11s rrom t:a, orrenng
me a very lucrative raise, and telling me he had
a brand new car arranged for me as well. He
made me feel guilty for not allowing him an
opportunity to match my new job offer. I made
an error and chose to remain in Ed's employ and
declined the other job offer.

Ed, never re-engaged my pay, or provided the
car. It was fraud from the inception, Ed began
sending emails falsely portraying me as
mentally-balanced, and that he would spread
this information through his 'expertise' across
the internet. Moreover, I became destitute from
not being paid, Ed informed my landlord rent
would no longer be paid, and that is when he
told me if I wanted to be paid and back in his
good graces I needed to sign a full release with a
clause that 'if telling the truth disparages Ed
Magedson, Ripoff Report of any of their agents I
would have to pay $250,000.00' or words to that
effect.
Ed and Xcentric Ventures conduct seems to use
defamation, false light invasion of privacy,
tortious interference with contract, and
interference with prospective economic
advantage, among other claims. I was paid
initially from payroll check from Xcentric
Ventures, then they asked to pay my landlord
directly ( $3500 per month ) and utilized Green
Dot for an additional $500 weekly.
It is apparent that your novel approach has
garnered much publicity in the end, legal pundits
claim this is "another creative-but-doomed-fromthe-start attempt by a litigant to try to strip
away CDA 230 protection."

http://blog.ericgoldman.org/archives/2014/04/x
centric-ventures-chips-away-at-small-justicescopyrig ht-worka rou nd-to-section-230. htm
Unless, you can provide to the court
Ed's participation and solicitation of victims of
.
. . ..
.
~
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aeramatory reports to part1c1pate in its tee-based
Corporate Advisory Program and VIP Arbitration
program.
I may or may not have consensually recorded
call regarding Mr. Magedson and/or his services,
including drafts, correspondence, lead lists, and
both the alias and real names of a sales person
in California. Whom created post and then tried
to re-mediate the problem, also created
additional false posts, if the person denied the
CAP, or so I am told. I am a voracious
researcher, are you aware that multiple CAP
members who 'pledged to 100°10 customer
satisfaction' were later shut down by the FTC? In
my opinion, how could the CAP program be valid
to protecting consumers, if multiple times these
Internet Marketers, join the CAP program, yet
during the time they are on the CAP program,
these members defraud senior citizens of
$200,000,000.00 according to the FTC, 42°10 of
who were over 60 years of age, the one group
unable to recover from financial ruin.
May I ask, are you just trying to have your false
post remove or actually challenge the CDA?
That question is for my own knowledge.
Please let me know would you be willing to
represent me in my claim against Ed Magedson
and Xcentric Ventures?

If so, I believe drafting a lawsuit and providing it
to them before it was filed would cause an
immediate settlement for us both. Ed actually
had me record him on the phone selling the CAP
program so that I could hear how to sell it, and
then sell on my own.
Ed is aware of my lead list, and also my disdain
for a sales rep he employs, not just any sales
rep but someone who was held on a 5150
involuntary hold for threatening to shoot a
professor. Ed gave me a veiled threat saying he
has .sent people
to my private
investigators to
.
.
.
-

-
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my home, that they watch my every move. Th is
does not constitute a complete or exhaustive
statement of what I may or may not know. If
you wish to pursue creating new case law for the
CDA, I would have even more to sha re.
Please let me know if you would consid er
representi ng me, I truly need to find someone
given my financial and medical condition.
This letter is a confident ial legal communication
and is not for dissemination or publication. -

Darren M. Meade
Direct: (949) 813-4983
Visit m e .Qn LLnkedin
Visit me on Facebook
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From: Darren M. Meade [mailto;dmeade@kairosmeade.com]
Sent~

Sr1t11rrlr1v. M;iv 17 J 0 14 t;•4?

AM

;:,uo1ec-c; 1...onmcc request .. t a Magedson 11 Ripoff Report

II
Importance: High

Dear M1
May I ask if you currently are the
attorney suing Ripoff Report?
I will be entering litigation against
Ed Magedson and Ripoff
Report and looking to recover
amount north of$ 1 mil. and have
very strong case supported by a lot
of material and data. We are
looking for a strong experienced
closer. This should be fairly straight
forward given the data I insider
information would also may prove
's current case
against tne same parties : : that
coupled with my information
should lead to a quick lucrative
resolution for us both, I am
seeking a contingency
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arrangement.
We would like to send a brief
overview of our case but need to
make certain their would not be a
conflict.
Should you verify you are not
representing Ed Magedson
(Arizona) or associated with his
counsel ( Adam Kunz, Maria Speth,
David Gringas) I will send the case
over to your email for review.
Certain confidential information will
be disclosed in person.
Very truly yours,
Darren M. Meade
Direct: (949) 813-4983
Visit me on Linkedin
Visit me on Facebook
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To:
Subject:

Re: Message from Internet Law Group website contact form

Attachments:

doctors note.jpg

doctors note 2.jpg

EXHIBIT

prescriptions.jpg

,
that I was an employee of Ripoﬀ Report and that one of my job du es was to post reports anonymously that the
manager of Ripoﬀ Report (Ed Magedson) had personally dictated to me. I have addi onal ﬁrst hand knowledge that
another employee of Ripoﬀ Report sold their corporate advocacy program, if they declined, this person, wrote addi onal
nega ve reviews, some of the vic ms are well known plas c surgeons in Orange County, California.
I am not skilled at ﬁguring out allega ons or damages and would reply on your exper se.
That being said, to me, my health.
Let me explain, I suﬀered a triple dissec on of my aorta, and was placed on dialysis. I developed high blood pressure
while working for Ripoﬀ Report which was 200 / 110 ... that is in part why I accepted another job ... Ripoﬀ Report oﬀered
me a raise and a new car ... then demanded before they paid me ( I've been 2 months without pay) I had to sign a
se lement agreement. I was unable to get treatment, or blood pressure medica on.
Ripoﬀ Report sent me a 'good faith' Green Dot of $500 but demanded I verify to them I went to the doctor, and also
wanted proof of my blood pressure medica on ... Ripoﬀ report demanded I provide a doctor write a note, which I
complied and copies of my prescrip ons. The doctor note clearly states in order to maintain conﬁden ality all further
ques ons needed to be directed to myself directly. Ripoﬀ Report, then wrote into the se lement agreement that they
needed my en re medical ﬁle and to speak with my doctor directly. ( I know that is oﬀ point ... but ﬁrst they demand I
verify ... then tell me that my medical condi on needs to be in a se lement agreement to get paid wages ) doctors feel
I only have months le to live ... Ripoﬀ Report has taken 2 months of my life in nego a ng to pay me wages owed, how
does one quan fy that?
2nd, I had been paid $7,000 a month net and was oﬀered $7500 a month net plus a car, I've lost that.
I had a club foot for which I had surgery, due to the forced walking without a car and without money to pay for cabs even
though I had surgery to ﬁx the club foot ... I was never to walk miles each day / my foot has begun deforming again, how
is that quan ﬁed?
I can send along one of the se lement oﬀers from Ripoﬀ Report, they have oﬀered $38,000.00 which is far to low. They
also are holding my advocacy work hostage. I am not an a orney, but I research a women who was wrongfully convicted
of murder. The video's I prepared and published have caused the State A orney General, to s pulate certain evidence
should not have been included, and release her. She had been convicted for life without the possibility of parole. The
se lement agreement they have oﬀered could place my advocacy work in jeopardy. Due to the wording which they have
told me is not open to being edited.
The website makes nearly $15,000,000.00 a year this lawsuit would place their every existence at risk, I believe the
se lement would in the high six ﬁgures perhaps 7.
Below is the email I sent to Ripoﬀ Report and its a orney's perhaps it will help address more of your ques ons.
Kindest regards,

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

Dear Mr. Kunz & Mr. Magedson:
I am wri ng regarding your wide‐spread dissemina on of outlandish defamatory lies and demand that you immediately
cease and desist from dissemina ng false and defamatory Statements about myself (Darren M Meade) including your
blatant lies to the eﬀect I am a "extor onist" "corrupt" and an "unnethical" "con man" who is "pathe c con man," has
engaged in "fraud," has and has supposedly even been clinically diagnosed by a psychiatrist and psychologist as a
"bipolar" (the "Statements") you have been falsely portraying me client as an unethical and mentally‐unbalanced thief in
false Statements you have spread via emails and in other communica ons, as well as informing third par es that your
Statements will con nue be spread across the internet (a thinly‐veiled threat to use your exper se in that regard to
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smear me and my advocacy work for Tracey Richter), and you have knowledge that emails peddling your lies are
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provided to my enemies (Michael Roberts, John Brewington) via an unjust criminal inves ga on by Prosecutor Ben
Smith.
All of this demonstrates your malicious inten on to harm my reputa on by spreading outrageous demonstrable lies. Your
conduct exposes you to very substan al liability for defama on, false light invasion of privacy, tor ous interference with
contract, and interference with prospec ve economic advantage, among other claims. Moreover, if you con nue to
engage in this course of wrongful conduct, doing so will exacerbate that liability exponen ally, poten ally exposing you
to liability for compensatory and puni ve damages of tens of millions of dollars.
Your oﬀensive and harmful false Statements include referring to me as an "unethical" "money stealing" "scammer" who
provides "No value, no service”
Those lies are pointedly calculated to allow you to conceal I was an employee and you have refused to pay my earned
wages unless I sign a forced release dra ed by Xcentric, and also transparently calculated to exploit my soon to be
notoriety arising from the exonera on of Tracey Richter and to use that as a catalyst to spread your lies about me. The
aim to allow Xcentric to not to pay me for the wages I earned and a pre‐emp ve measure because Ed Magedson paid me
in part to protect him online which included his providing the wording, and content in certain reports, including but not
limited to Ripoﬀ Report.
While we already have evidence in hand proving your wrongful conduct, we hereby put you on no ce of your obliga on
to maintain any and all communica ons in your possession, custody and/or control regarding my client including text
messages from (602) 518‐4357 for eviden ary purposes, as set forth herein.
EMPLOYEE EXAMPLE 1: Ed Magedson, had hired me protect his online reputa on and to research his enemies and
discover their skeleton. He had me pledge to secrecy and a er a near mishap that I would not disclose anything to his
a orneys. That pledge was kept even during all of the a acks un l this email on June 16, 2014. This email address is
compromised and knowing this email will wind up in my enemies hands I will be par ally vague, although you will be
able to easily verify the informa on. A call from Jaburg and Wilk from Maria Speth and Adam Kunz concerning private
investigator John Brewington. Review Ed’s text messages to me 5 minutes prior to the call and during the call. Ed, was
telling me, ﬁrst not to pick up the phone, then he was answering for me the ques ons being asked by Maria during the
call. The relevance, Ed, clearly was asking me to keep matters concealed from his attorney’s, perhaps they were not
aware of the capaci es I was hired?The text messages from Ed were from (602) 518‐4357.
EMPLOYEE EXAMPLE 2: Ed Magedson, stated he heard from one of his attorney’s that Bennet Kelley might be
represen ng Michael Roberts in his ac on against Xcentric. He asked me to discredit Bennet Kelley and con nually
write rebu als to keep it lis ng high in Google. The following was researched and published.
h p://www.ripoﬀreport.com/r/Bennet‐Kelley‐Internet‐Law‐Center‐ValueClick‐E‐Babylon‐Hi‐Speed‐media‐Jacquie‐
Jordan/California/Bennet‐Kelley‐Internet‐Law‐Center‐ValueClick‐E‐Babylon‐Hi‐Speed‐media‐Jacquie‐Jordan‐1089115
Ed, then heard from his a orney, that it was not going to be Bennet Kelley but an a orney named Christopher Ingle. I
researched Ingle but could not ﬁnd any skeletons. Ed asked me to write a report, that it would not be posted, instead he
wanted to be able to show that he was holding defamatory reports as a courtesy. Ed told me to include the following in
the report / Ingle has body odor and poor hygiene / Ingle owns only one suit wear it every day / Ingle screwed over a
female client and is incompetent / Ingle was ﬁred from his last ﬁrm and everyone hated him. There will be a report on
Ingle which was held.
Ed, asked me to post the same report on other sites, which I did. On Ripoﬀ Report I u lized mostly person@yopmail.com
Ed told me not to worry about my IP address as Jus n would scramble the IP. I did u lize aol account 4 or 5 mes
EMPLOYEE EXAMPLE 3: Being that this email account is compromised, ask Ed for the user name and password u lized
for an AOL account. This was the account that Ed would log into, write things in a dra folder that I was to then place
into certain reports. I have screen shots of the dra s.
If credibility is ques oned, I have many more examples, screen shots and recordings.
In addi on to your recent spate of defamatory emails you ins gated a confronta on where you falsely accused me of
being a "con man" and a "fraud" and a acking my religious beliefs, in presence of mul ple witnesses. Although at the
me I declined to take formal ac on against you, you appear to have misconstrued the absence of a legal demand as a
license to escalate your dissemina on of malicious lies about me. Since then, you have intensiﬁed your smear campaign
and con nually place more lies into a se lement agreements for my unpaid wages, aware that all emails, to
dmeade@kairos‐meade.com is copied by Prosecutor Ben Smith and disseminated to my enemies.
To the extent that you a empt to claim that in your emails peppered with defamatory statements you might have
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paraphrased or li ed from other sources and that you are therefore not responsible for sta ng that Darren M Meade is a
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"conman" "bipolar" etc., any such argument would fail as a legal defense to defama on claims, since you will be shown
to have directed Darren M Meade in the publishing of defamatory statements on others who were deemed the enemy of
Ripoﬀ Report there by adop ng those defamatory statements as your own. See, e.g., Khawar v. Globe lnt'l, Inc., 19
CaI.4th 254, 79 CaI.Rptr.2d 178 (1998) ("one who republishes a defamatory statement is deemed thereby to have
adopted it and so may be held liable, together with the person who originated the statement, for resul ng injury to the
reputa on of the defama on vic m"); Srnolla, Law ofDefama on (2nd Ed. 2004) Vol. 1, §4:91 (secondary publisher, or
republisher, may be liable for defamatory publica on). Be advised that "repe on of another's words does not release
one of responsibility if the repeater knows that the words are false or inherently improbable, or there are obvious
reasons to doubt the veracity of the person quoted or the accuracy of his reports.... " Goldwater v. Ginzburg, 414 F.2d
324,337 (C.A.N.Y. 1969). That is the case here.
Of course, even if there were any merit to an argument that you ought not be responsible for repea ng lies in your
emails, your verbal statements to third party witnesses were direct and unques onably expose you to substan al
liability for slander. For example, in addi on to calling me a "fraud" and a "con man," you have told third par es that
Darren Meade "ripped oﬀ" Ed Magedson, and even said that my client has supposedly been clinically diagnosed as a
"sociopath" by mul ple physicians! Such lies are defamatory on their face.
Addi onally, the false portrayal of someone as mentally unsound, unbalanced, or emo onally vola le is defamatory per
se. see, e.g., Rest. of Torts 2d §559 (imputation of mental attributes such as insanity are defamatory); Mattox v. News
Syndicate Co., 176 F.2d 97,901 (2d Cir. 1949) cert den. 70 S.Ct. 100 (1949) ("general law" is that "it is libelous per se to
say that a person is insane or of unstable mind"); Goldwater v. Ginzburg, 14 F.2d 324 (2d Cir. 1969)
The falsity of your Statements about me is belied by the fact that; even now, you con nue to commercially exploit my
valuable name and likeness by using Darren M Meade implied endorsement on the front page of RipoﬀReport.com.
If there was any truth to the lies you have been spreading about me (which there isn't), you would not deign to con nue
using my complimentary statements and inves ga ve repor ng on Ripoﬀ Report. The fact that you have the temerity to
commercially exploit my name and demand “unrestricted access” to my work product for more than 20 hours to be paid
my earned wages, while simultaneously spewing lies about me, thereby undermining the value of my name and
inves gatory talents is shocking.
It is apparent that you are bent on harming my reputa on and are inexplicably being mo vated to do so by animosi es
and hos lity toward me. Your ongoing pa ern of defaming me through mean‐spirited lies is nevertheless truly puzzling
since I had shown you nothing but respect, never made nega ve statements about you, and had considered you a friend.
Even a er not paying me from the 2nd week of April ll now.
I reached out to you prior to my seeking legal representa on for my unpaid wages, and when asked sent copies of the
communica on I sent seeking legal representa on. The specious untruths (all of which I refuted) I reached out to you to
discuss the issues you raised and even when under a ack by your a orney Adam Kunz, kept most of my work du es
silent. At my invita on, we spoke, se led ma er for the unpaid wages, and I promised to sign a release protec ng you.
You asked me to ﬁguring out a way to explain the emails seeking representa on, and suggested due to my medical
condi on I claims I was depressed.
A erwards, I thought that whatever had mo vated to break your promises and stop paying me including the
accusa on~laden email had been resolved.
I was therefore shocked when, each time a Settlement Agreement arrived, the terms changed and with each ‘redraft’
addi onal defamatory clauses within the new dra of the agreement where you outrageously slandered me, calling him
a "con man" and a "fraud".
Despite that incident, I was s ll determined to look the other way rather than asser ng legal claims against you and
Xcentric. However, it now appears that no good deed goes unpunished, and that you misinterpreted the fact that you had
not yet been sued for defaming me as jus ﬁca on to ramp up your defama on campaign.
Furthermore, in the event that you believe you will be able to spread lies about me while hiding behind a cloak of
anonymity, be advised that I have no choice but to now disclose what you Ed had me pledge to keep secret.
We both know, and laughed I was your ‘reputation hitman’, you also know I have you on audio recording directing me on
what to write about Brand.com // you have robbed me of nearly two‐months and I do not have much me, I even reduced
the se lement by 2/3rds … hopeful this time what I agreed upon with Adam Kunz would make its way onto the
se lement agreement.
If you persist in dissemina ng false and defamatory statements about me, the legal liability to which you are already
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exposed will be signiﬁcantly exacerbated. As you know (especially since you are seeking to commercially exploit them
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even now), my reputa on and brand are extremely valuable, and the lies you have been spewing about him are
obviously inten onally calculated to harm his reputa on and damage his brand. If that occurs, the ﬁnancial
consequences will ul mately be borne by you in the event that this ma er proceeds to li ga on. We conserva vely
believe that, in addi on to the very substan al liability you have already incurred due to unpaid wages, discrimina on
and previous dissemina on of defamatory statements about me if you con nue your wrongful conduct, my damages will
escalate, exposing you to millions of dollars in compensatory and puni ve damages.
We demand that you immediately cease and desist from making any further false and defamatory statements about my
client to any person or en ty, including in verbal statements, in emails, on your own internet websites and blogs, your
Facebook page, or otherwise. We also demand that you immediately retract any and all false statements you previously
communicated to third par es about me and my services.
In addi on, we demand that you cease and desist from exploi ng or using my name and/or likeness in any manner
whatsoever, including to state or imply any endorsement of you and/or Ripoﬀ Report and services. To the extent that
you contend that any such uses by you have previously been authorized by me, any such purported authoriza on was
vi ated by your malicious conduct and is no longer valid.
So that the following materials will be available for eviden ary purposes if necessary in li ga on, we also demand that
you undertake immediate steps to preserve all documents and records (including electronic data such as emails and text
messages) in the possession, custody or control of you and/or your agents. Representa ves (Siamack Yaghobi) and all
employees, pertaining to the Statements and all communica ons regarding Darren Meade and/or his services, including
without limita on all emails sent and received, dra s, correspondence, and communica ons of any kind. This
preserva on demand is also applicable to all communica ons evidencing your eﬀorts to publicize, disseminate and/or
otherwise exploit the Statements or any por ons thereof (i.e., your
communica ons to third par es regarding the Statements). Be advised that your failure to ensure that all such materials
are appropriately preserved may give rise to addi onal claims for spolia on of evidence.
I cannot overemphasize the seriousness of this ma er. If you disregard the foregoing demands, you do so at your peril.
This does not cons tute a complete or exhaus ve statement of all of my rights or claims. Nothing contained herein is
intended as, nor should it be deemed to cons tute, a waiver or relinquishment of any of my rights or remedies, whether
legal or equitable, all of which are hereby expressly reserved. This le er is a conﬁden al legal communica on and is not
for dissemina on or publica on. ‐

On Mon, Jun 16, 2014 at 6:06 PM,
wrote:
Can you be a bit more specific about the allegations in lawsuit that you are looking to file and the damages you
have suffered?

Sent from my iPhone
On Jun 16, 2014, at 5:46 PM, Darren Mitchell <darrenmitchellm@gmail.com> wrote:
Thank you for your reply.
Are you familiar with Ripoff Report and that they only have not been held liable for defamation due to
protections of the CDA?
I was employed by Ed Magedson who dictated to me reports to be filed on Ripoff Report.
Text messages and other documents will prove this was to be kept secret from his attorney's at
Jaburg and Wilk.
Ed Magedson hired me directly in California when he visited for 4 days 2 years ago.

More info: Ripoffreport-Victims-Unite.org/

I believe given your understanding of Internet Law you would be the ideal attorney to draft the lawsuit
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which is a more of an employment law issue but the reason for quick settlement will be over Internet
Law and what certainly would be a death blow in my opinion to Ripoff Report protections under the
CDA.
The employment law issues center on my having accepted another job, which I informed Ed
Magedson.
I should share I have a terminal medical condition and accepted the new job because it would have
allowed me to afford a new car ... I have to drive for medical treatment and doctor appointments and
after a year Ripoff Report refused to provide a car which was apart of my compensation package.
Ed, offered to match my new salary $7,500 plus a new car, I stayed but for the first time in 2 years Ed
stopped paying me. He told me in order to be paid I needed to sign a settlement agreement ... I had
lost the other job opportunity because I stayed with Ed ... and Ed knew without being paid I could not
afford the taxi to my medical treatments, rent, and medicines for my heart ... each time we agreed to
settle, the settlement agreements added multiple defamatory and malicious language, claiming
falsehood about myself and my character, yet on the front page of the website they feature my past
articles / reports and use those stories to sell their services.
Long story short, they will settle but have forced me to have to have legal representation given their
bull dog attorney's. My only source of income is a disability check for $836.00 would you take the
case on contingency? The moment a lawsuit is drafted, they will settle. I would offer 45% of the
recovery ... or if you are leery of placing your name on the lawsuit, could you draft it, and advise me,
and I would offer you 20% of the recovery?
Please let me know your thoughts.
Thank you for your consideration.
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IOWA ETHICS OPINION
October 24, 2014

WRONGFULLY ACCUSING A LAWYER OF UNETHICAL CONDUCT, FRAUD,
DISHONESTY OR DECEIT TO GAIN A TACTICAL ADVANTAGE VIOLATES IA. R.
PROF’L C. 32:8.4(C).

IA ETHICS OP 14-02
NICK CRITELLI, Chair
Iowa State Bar Association
Ethics and Practice Guidelines Committee 1

Is it unethical to call a fellow lawyer unethical? Recently the Committee has
received inquiries from all quarters of the bar – criminal prosecution and defense; civil
plaintiff and defense – about the propriety of calling opposing counsel’s conduct
unethical. Sadly, some have said that the threat of an ethical complaint has been used
to coerce action.
The Committee recognizes that emotions sometime get the better of counsel
when they are in the heat of battle. But there are limits and experienced counsel know
the line. The purpose of this “back to basics” opinion is to give the bar a closer focus on
the line and the ability to discern real unethical behavior from that which merely
reflects professional differences.
The Accusation of Unethical Conduct
The Iowa legal profession takes great pride in it being self-policing. It is one of
the three hallmarks of being a profession. Consequently when one member of the
profession accuses another of being unethical the mere fact of the allegation alone is
taken seriously. Iowa R. Prof’l Conduct 32:8.3 mandates that:
1The

Iowa State Bar Association Committee on Ethics and Practice Guidelines: Nick Critelli, Chair
David Phipps, Maureen Heffernan, J.C. Salvo, Matthew Hartman McKinney, David Beckman, Sam
Langholz , Stan Thompson, Andrew Heiting-Doane, Paula L Roby, Andrew C Abbott, Art Cady, Sara
Laughlin; ex officio Joe Feller, Pres ISBA, Dwight Dinkla, Ex. Dir ISBA.
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(a) A lawyer who knows that another lawyer has committed a violation of the
Iowa Rules of Professional Conduct shall inform the appropriate professional
authority.
The rule is mandatory, not discretionary. One who makes the allegation must
report it to the Iowa Supreme Court Attorney Disciplinary Board. Failure to do so is
itself a violation of Rule 32:8.4(a)
The Allegation of Fraud, Dishonesty and Deceit
Like allegations of unethical conduct, assertions of fraud, dishonesty and deceit
made by one lawyer against another are serious. Rule 32:8.4(c) provides:
“It is professional misconduct for a lawyer to:
***
(c) engage in conduct involving dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or misrepresentation;”
The asserting lawyer has an obligation under Rule 32:8.to report the conduct to the
Iowa Attorney Disciplinary Board. Consequently these allegations should never be
made to obtain a tactical advantage or to coerce action.

The American Bar Association Standing Committee on Ethics and Professional
Responsibility has come to a similar conclusion in ABA Formal Opinion 94-383: “Use of
Threatened Disciplinary Complaint Against Opposing Counsel “:
“A lawyer's use of the threat of filing a disciplinary complaint or report against
opposing counsel, to obtain an advantage in a civil case, is constrained by the
Model Rules, despite the absence of an express prohibition on the subject. Such a
threat may not be used as a bargaining point when the subject misconduct raises
a substantial question as to opposing counsel's honesty, trustworthiness or
fitness as a lawyer, because in these circumstances, the lawyer is ethically
required to report such misconduct. Such a threat would also be improper if the
professional misconduct is unrelated to the civil claim, if the disciplinary charges
are not well founded in fact and in law, or if the threat has no substantial purpose
or effect other than embarrassing, delaying or burdening the opposing counsel or
his client, or prejudicing the administration of justice.”
The Warning of a Potential Ethical Violation
To escape the duty to report under Rule 32:8.3 and avoid their Rule 32:8.4
violation for failure to report, sometimes counsel employ a tactic of “warning”
2
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opposing counsel of the “”potential” for ethical conduct. When the warning is issued as
a threat, or with the ulterior motive to influence or coerce opposing counsel to do or do
not do a particular act that the accuser finds unacceptable, it violates Iowa Supreme
Court Rule 33: 1(1):
A lawyer’s conduct should be characterized at all times by personal courtesy and
professional integrity in the fullest sense of those terms. In fulfilling our duty to
represent a client vigorously as lawyers, we will be mindful of our obligations to
the administration of justice, which is a truth-seeking process designed to resolve
human and societal problems in a rational, peaceful and efficient manner.
It also violates Iowa Supreme Court Rule 32:1(3):
Conduct that may be characterized as uncivil, abrasive, abusive, hostile or
obstructive impedes the fundamental goal of resolving disputes rationally,
peacefully and efficiently. Such conduct tends to delay and often to deny justice.
In Sec. Nat'l Bank of Sioux City v. Abbott Labs., 2014 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 102228,
2014 WL 3704277 (N.D. Iowa July 28, 2014), Bennett, J. noted, at fn 8:
“Iowa trial lawyers have a long and storied tradition and culture of civility that is
first taught at the state's two law schools, the University of Iowa College of Law
and the Drake University Law School. I know this because I have taught and
lectured at both of these outstanding law schools that produce the bulk of Iowa
lawyers. Civility is then taken very seriously, nourished and lead by the Iowa
Supreme Court, and continually reinforced by the Iowa State Bar Association, the
Iowa Academy of Trial Lawyers, and all of the other legal organizations in the
state, as well as senior members of the bar, law firm partners from large to small
firms, and solo practitioners across the state. There is great pride in being an
Iowa lawyer, and describing someone as an Iowa lawyer almost always connotes
that lawyer's high commitment to civility and professionalism. Of course, there
are stinkers in the Iowa bar, but they are few and far between.”
Wrongfully accusing a fellow lawyer of unethical conduct, fraud, dishonesty or
deceit to gain advantage is the antithesis of professionalism.

-------------------------------------------------END -----------------------------------------------
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Glen Downey g en@downey- aw.net
State v. Meade
February 1, 2015 at 12:17 PM
Benjam n John Sm th attorney@saccounty.org

4

Ben,
I have communicated your “oﬀer” to my client as I am ethically obligated to do. My client has rejected
the oﬀer. Even if he was inclined to accept such an oﬀer in an eﬀort to have these baseless criminal
charges dismissed (which he is not so inclined), he has absolutely nothing to oﬀer you in regards to
Xcentric Ventures and Ed Magesdon because there has been no illegal conduct on the part of either
party.
It has become increasingly obvious by your emails to me that the enEre thrust of this campaign or
witch hunt against my client and Xcentric Ventures is your retaliatory eﬀorts to silence your criEcs.
While I can understand your emoEonal reacEon to such criEcism, what I cannot abide is your eﬀorts to
use your powers as a prosecutor to achieve that goal. As a prosecutor, I would hope that you’d be
aware that such criEcisms are part of the job descripEon and the Richter case will not be the last Eme
that individuals will quesEon your tacEcs and moEves in achieving a criminal convicEon. Prosecutors
are criEcized and must rise above such criEcisms. This, it seems, you are having diﬃculty doing.
Nevertheless, because we discussed this aPer the MoEon to Disqualify hearing, I will make the
following oﬀer to you (despite my personal belief that all of this is protected speech):
Your stated purpose in bringing this prosecuEon is “to protect the State’s witnesses” in State v. Richter,
therefore, if you agree to drop all charges against my client (and to pursue no criminal charges against
anyone or any enEty related to “arEcles” or “complaints” that are the substance of the charges against
my client), all follow up codes in these arEcles and complaints will be removed. Removing the follow
up codes means that no search engine will index the arEcles or complaints. So, for example, if someone
types a search into Google for John Pitman, none of the arEcles and complaints on the Rip Oﬀ Report
about John Pitman will appear in the search results. If, as you say, your goal is to protect the state’s
witnesses, this soluEon should be more than suﬃcient for you to achieve that goal.
Glen

Glen S. Downey

THE LAW OFFICES OF GLEN S. DOWNEY, LLC
301 East Walnut Street, Suite 4
Des Moines, IA 50309
glen@downeyalaw.net
www.downeyalaw.net
Tel: (515) 259a9571
Fax: (412) 291a1191
The information in this communication and in its attachments, if any, is privileged, confidential and intended
only for the recipient(s) listed above. Any review, use, disclosure, distribution or copying of this
communication is prohibited except by or on behalf of the intended recipient. If you have received this
communication in error or if you are not the intended recipient, please reply to this e-mail and destroy all
copies of the communication. 18 U.S.C. 2510-2521
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From: Maria Crimi Speth <mcs@jaburgwilk com>
Date: February 4 2015 at 5:26:20 PM MST
Subject: Meade's proposal

Dear Mr.

,

Normally we would address this communica7on directly to the Sac County A,orney, Ben Smith, because it
relates to his oﬃcial func7ons as a prosecutor and a proposed resolu7on of pending and threatened criminal
charges. In an abundance of cau7on we are sending it to you as his representa7ve, so that you can convey
informa7on it to Mr. Smith.
Darren Meade made a proposal with Xcentric’s authoriza7on. We wanted to conﬁrm that Ed Magedson and
Xcentric would cooperate and fulﬁll the terms of the oﬀer. We request that by Monday, Mr. Smith inform Mr.
Meade, and Mr. Magedson and Xcentric through their respec7ve counsel, whether or not the oﬀer is accepted.
Our understanding of the oﬀer is that the essen7al points are: if the State of Iowa will grant immunity to Darren
Meade, and to Ed Magedson, and Xcentric Ventures, and all a,orneys, employees, and agents of Xcentric for
any ac7ons related to the pos7ng of Ripoﬀ Reports about the Tracy Richter prosecu7on, and end his related
ac7vi7es, then in return, Xcentric will place “no;follow” codes in each of those reports on the RipoﬀReport.com
webpage.
Xcentric and Mr. Magedson understand that “no;follow” codes are instruc7ons to the search engines not to
index those URLs, and not to return search results from those URLs. That means that when a person does a
key;word search on the major search engines such as Google, Yahoo, and Bing, the “no;follow” coded URLs
should not be in the search engines’ index of available pages to report. Searches for names, or terms such as
“trial” or “misconduct” or any other words present on the web pages will not ﬁnd the webpage because the no;
follow code keeps that page out of the search engine’s index. In that respect, “no;follow” codes will likely mean
that people can’t ﬁnd the reports on Google, Yahoo, or Bing search results. Xcentric and Mr. Magedson do not
control the search engines, and cannot make promises about exactly how they will perform. Xcentric can and
will use the industry standard codes that func7on in the manner described, and any expert can explain the
result of a “no;follow” code
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Xcentric and Mr. Magedson have done nothing wrong or illegal. Nevertheless, they are willing to take the
proposed ac7ons to suppress the reports in order to end the ac7vi7es and threat of criminal charges based on
Mr. Smith’s allega7ons concerning the reports. Mr. Smith’s ac7vi7es are detrimental to Xcentric’s reputa7on
and business, and, along with the threat of prosecu7on, inﬂict a heavy emo7onal toll on Ed Magedson. Thus,
Xcentric and Mr. Magedson will cooperate with Mr. Meade’s proposal if it is accepted.
Please respond by Monday as to whether the State accepts the proposal.
Respecjully,

MARIA CRIMI SPETH | Shareholder
3200 North Central Avenue, 20th Floor, Phoenix Arizona 85012
Direct 602.248.1089 | Main 602.248.1000 | Fax 602.248.0522
Download vCard | jaburgwilk.com | mcs@jaburgwilk.com
This communication is intended only for the individual or entity to whom it is directed It may contain information that is privileged, confidential, or otherwise exempt
from disclosure under applicable law Dissemination, distribution, or copying of this communication by anyone other than the intended recipient, or a duly designated
employee or agent of such recipient, is prohibited If you have received this communication in error, please notify us immediately by telephone at (602)248-1000, or via email, and delete this message and all attachments thereto

